RECORDED BY: JEB

DEPUTY RECORDER 2012 RD15



DOCKET: PAGE: NO. OF PAGES: SEQUENCE:

649 2 91127361 10/04/91

ABYLAW

10/04/91

2120 W INA #204 TUCSON

LAS PALOMITAS

AZ 85741

MAIL AMOUNT PAID

9.00

9138

BYLAWS OF LAS PALOMITAS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

This First Amendment to the Bylaws is made as of the 2nd day of August, 1991 by the Las Palomitas Homeowners Association, Inc., an Arizona non-profit corporation (the Association).

The Association is desirous of amending the Bylaws as set forth in Article 6, paragraph 8. Therefore, the Association hereby amends the Bylaws as follows:

 Article II, Section 2 of the Bylaws is hereby superseded in its entirety by the following amended Article II, Section 2:

Article II, Section 2, Meetings of Members shall be held at the principal place of business of the Corporation or at such other convenient place as may be designated by the Board of Directors. Annual meetings shall be held in the month of January, exact date and time to be scheduled at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Special meetings of the Members may be called by the President or by a majority of the Directors or by Members having at least one-fourth of the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting. The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting, except as stated in the notice, unless by consent of two-thirds of the Members present, either in person or by proxy.

 Article V, Section 3 of the Bylaws is hereby superseded in its entirety by the following amended Article V, Section 3:

Article V, Section 3. <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be January 1st through December 31st, or such other period as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate.

0100

-

 Each and every provision of the Bylaws, as amended by this instrument, shall remain in full force and effect.

In witness whereof, the undersigned Association has executed this First Amendment the day and year first written above.

By Polyth Membare
Secretary Board Member
By () Stupenlarg Treasurer Board Member
This instrument was subscribed and sworn before me on this HM day of Oct , 1991 by:
My commission expires: Jan 11, 1993
Queta Pauelek.

STATE OF ARIZONA COUNTY OF PIMA



BYLAWS OF LAS PALOMITAS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

<u>Identity</u>

Section 1. <u>Declaration</u>. These Bylaws shall govern the operation of Las Palomitas Homeowners Association (the "Corporation"), an Arizona nonprofit corporation created pursuant to that certain Declaration of Protective Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Las Palomitas, as amended from time to time, as recorded on December 20, 1984 in Docket 7434, Page 1067, official records of Pima County, Arizona (the "Declaration"), which by this reference is incorporated herein. Any amendments to the Declaration shall automatically be incorporated herein, and all references to the Declaration shall be deemed to include any such amendments.

Section 2. <u>Terms</u>. Terms used herein which are defined in the Declaration shall have the same meanings as in the Declaration.

Section 3. Priority of Declaration. The provisions of the Declaration shall have priority over these Bylaws, and any provision hereof which is contrary to or inconsistent with the Declaration shall be void to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 4. <u>Principal Office</u>. The principal office of the Corporation shall be located initially at 7328 North Oracle Road, Tucson, Arizona. Notices to be given to the Corporation shall be given at its principal office.

Section 5. <u>Seal</u>. The seal of the Corporation shall bear the name of the Corporation, the word "Arizona", the word "nonprofit" and the year of incorporation.

ARTICLE II

Membership

Section 1. Members. Membership in the Corporation shall be limited as set forth in the Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation.

Section 2. Meetings. Meetings of Members shall be held at the principal place of business of the Corporation or at such other convenient place as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The first annual

meeting of the Members shall be held at such time as the Board of Directors shall designate. Thereafter, annual meetings of the Members shall be held on the third Tuesday in June in each year beginning at 7:00 P.M. Special meetings of the Members may be called by the President or by a majority of the directors or by Members having at least one-fourth of the votes entitled to be cast at such meeting. The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof. No business shall be transacted at a special meeting, except as stated in the notice, unless by consent of two-thirds of the Members present, either in person or by proxy.

Section 3. <u>Voting</u>. The voting rights of the Members shall be as provided in the Declaration.

Section 4. Notice. Notice of all meetings of the Members stating the time, the place and the objects for which the meeting is called shall be given by the President, Vice President or Secretary unless notice is waived in writing. Such notice must be in writing and addressed to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting at his address as it appears on the books of the Corporation (or if no such address appears, at his last known address), and shall be mailed not less than 10 days nor more than 50 days prior to the date of the meeting. Notice of meetings may be waived before, during or after the meeting.

Section 5. Quorum. A quorum of members for any meeting shall be constituted by Members represented in person or by proxy and holding ten percent of the votes entitled to be cast at the meeting. Unless the vote of a greater number is required by these Bylaws, the Articles, the Declaration or Arizona law, the affirmative vote of a majority of the members represented at a meeting and entitled to vote shall be binding as the act of the Members.

Section 6. Adjourned Meetings. If any meeting of Members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the Members who are present, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not more than 48 hours from the time the original meeting was called.

Section 7. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Members shall be as follows:

- (a) Roll call and verification of proxies.
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice.
- (c) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting.
- (d) Reports of officers.
- (e) Reports of committees.

- (f) Appointment of inspectors of election when required.
- (g) Election of members of the Board of Directors when required.
- (h) Unfinished business.
- (i) New business.
- (j) Adjournment.

ARTICLE III

Board of Directors

Section 1. Number and Qualification. The business, property and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed, controlled and conducted by a Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall consist of three members. The number of directors may be altered from time to time by resolution of a majority vote of the Board of Directors, or of the members of the Corporation at any regular or special meeting called for such purpose, but only within the limits prescribed by the Articles. In the event of any increase in the number of directors in advance of the annual meeting, each additional director shall be elected by the then Board of Directors and hold office until his successor is elected and shall qualify. Except for directors appointed by the Declarant, each director shall be an Owner or if an Owner is a corporation, partnership or trust, a director may be a director, officer, partner or beneficiary of such Owner. If a director shall cease to meet such qualifications during his term, he will thereupon cease to be a director and his place on the Board shall be deemed vacant.

Section 2. Powers and Duties. The Board of Directors shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Corporation, and may do all such acts and things as are not by law or otherwise directed to be exercised and done by the Members. The powers of the Board of Directors shall include, but not be limited to, all of the rights and duties of the Board of Directors as set forth elsewhere in these Bylaws, the Articles and the Declaration, and shall also include the power to promulgate such rules and regulations pertaining to the rights and duties of members of the Corporation, and all other matters, as may be deemed proper and which are consistent with the foregoing. The Board of Directors may delegate to one or more committees thereof, and to other persons, such duties and powers, all as appears to the Board of Directors to be in the best interests of the Corporation and to the extent permitted by law.

Section 3. Election and Term of Office. The election and term of office of the directors shall be as provided in the Articles and the

Declaration.

Section 4. Vacancies. Vacancies on the Board of Directors caused by any reason shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining directors even though less than a quorum, or by the remaining director if there be only one, and each person so elected shall be a director until his successor is duly elected by the Members of the Corporation and shall qualify.

Section 5. Compensation. No compensation shall be paid to directors for their services as directors. No remuneration shall be paid to a director for services performed by him for the Corporation in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been unanimously adopted by the Board of Directors before the services are undertaken. Directors and officers, however, may be reimbursed for any actual expenses incurred in connection with their duties as such officers or directors.

Section 6. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the directors, but at least two such meetings (including an organizational meeting within ten days of election of directors by the Members of the Corporation) shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each director, personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, at least three days prior to the day named for the meeting.

Section 7. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or Secretary on three days' notice to each director, given personally or by mail, telephone or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Upon the written request of at least two of the directors, special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice.

Section 8. Waiver of Notice. Before, at, or after any meeting of the Board of Directors, any director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a director at any meeting of the Board shall be deemed to be a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the directors are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required, and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 9. Quorum. A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, but if at any meeting of the Board there be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board unless the Articles, the Bylaws or the Declaration otherwise specifically requires the

affirmative vote of a different number of directors on a specific matter.

Section 10. Adjournments. The Board of Directors may adjourn any meeting from day to day or for such other time as may be prudent or necessary in the interests of the Corporation, provided that no meeting may be adjourned for a period longer than 30 days.

Section 11. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting which they could take at a meeting by obtaining the written approval of all of the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the directors.

Section 12. <u>Fidelity Bonds</u>. The Board of Directors may require, in its discretion, and shall require to the extent required by the Declaration, that all officers and employees of the Corporation handling or responsible for the Corporation's funds shall furnish fidelity bonds. In the event such bonds are required upon determination of the Board of Directors, the premiums therefor shall be paid by the Corporation.

Section 13. Committees. The Board of Directors may by resolution appoint committees of the Board, which committees shall have the powers and authority designated in the resolution or resolutions establishing them.

Section 14. Powers and Duties. Except as expressly set forth in the Declaration, the Articles, the Bylaws or by statute, all the powers and duties of the Association shall be exercised by the Board, which shall include, without limitation, the authority, but not the obligation, to suspend the right of an Owner, Occupant or any other Person (including without limitation a member of the family of an Owner or Occupant) to use the Common Areas or any designated portion thereof for a period not to exceed 60 days for a single infraction of the rules and regulations of the Association or breach of the Declaration, or up to six months for any subsequent violation of the same or similar provisions of the rules and regulations of the Association or the Declaration, provided that the procedure set forth in Article V, Section 5 of these Bylaws must be followed in suspending such right to use the Common Areas.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 1. <u>Designation</u>. The principal officers of the Corporation shall be a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors. The directors may appoint an Assistant Secretary and an Assistant Treasurer, and such other officers as in their judgment may be necessary. Only a director may hold the office of President. Any one person may hold two or more offices at the same time, except that no one person shall simulta-

neously hold the office of President and Secretary.

Section 2. <u>Election of Officers</u>. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Removal of Officers. Upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor elected.

Section 4. Resignation of Officers. Any Officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Section 5. <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office may be filled by vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. The officer elected to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.

Section 6. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation. He shall preside at all meetings of the Members of the Corporation and of the Board of Directors. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are normally vested in the office of the President of a corporation, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the Members of the Corporation from time to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation.

Section 7. Vice President. The Vice President (or the most senior Vice President, if there shall be more than one) shall take the place of the President and perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent, unable to act or refuses to act. If neither the President nor a Vice President is able to act, the Board of Directors shall appoint some other member of the Board to do so on an interim basis. A Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon him by the Board of Directors.

Section 8. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and the minutes of all meetings of the Members of the Corporation; he shall have custody of the seal of the Corporation; he shall have charge of the membership books and such other books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary.

Section 9. <u>Treasurer</u>. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for the Corporation's funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Corporation. He shall be responsible for the

deposit of all moneys and other valuable effects in the name, and to the credit, of the Corporation in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 10. <u>Compensation</u>. No compensation shall be paid to officers for their services as officers. No remuneration shall be paid to an officer for services performed by him for the Corporation in any other capacity, unless a resolution authorizing such remuneration shall have been unanimously adopted by the Board of Directors before the services are undertaken.

ARTICLE V

Miscellaneous

Section 1. Books and Accounts. The Board, at all times, shall keep, or cause to be kept by the Treasurer, true and correct records of account in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and shall have available for the inspection of all Members, at reasonable times, such books which shall specify in reasonable detail all expenses incurred and funds accumulated from assessments or otherwise. The membership records of the Corporation, the Declaration, the Articles and the Bylaws of the Corporation shall likewise be available for inspection by any member at the principal offices of the Corporation in accordance with the Declaration.

Section 2. <u>Execution of Corporate Documents</u>. With the prior authorization of the Board of Directors, all notes, checks and contracts or other obligations shall be executed on behalf of the Corporation by such officer or officers of the Corporation as said Board shall designate.

Section 3. <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be July 1 through June 30, or such other period as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate.

Section 4. Conflict in Documents. In the case of any conflict between the Articles and these Bylaws, the Articles shall control. In the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these Bylaws, or between the Articles and the Declaration, the Declaration shall control.

Section 5. Hearings on Suspension of Use Right. All hearings relating to suspension of the right of any Person to use the Common Areas, as provided for in the Declaration, shall be held in Pima County, Arizona. The Board shall give notice of the time and location of the hearing to such Person no later than 10 days before the hearing. The notice shall specify the particular section(s) or provision(s) of the Declaration and/or Asso-

ciation Rules which are alleged to have been violated. At the hearing, all affected parties shall be given the opportunity to reasonably present their position. The hearing need not be open to the Members or to the public.

ARTICLE VI

Amendment of the Bylaws

These Bylaws may be amended by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors. These Bylaws may not be amended insofar as such amendment would be inconsistent with the Declaration or the Articles.

CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION

This is to certify that the foregoing Bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the Las Palomitas Homeowners Association at the organizational meeting of the Board of Directors duly held on the 3rd day of January, 1985.

LAS PALOMITAS HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

NOTABLE RULES AND REGULATIONS

Following are the most commonly violated Rules and Regulations of Las Palomitas. The Board of Directors invites your attention to these rules and solicits your support in helping to keep Las Palomitas a great place to live.

- The Association provides trash service. There are no trash receptacles in Las Palomitas and residents are requested to place their trash in black plastic bags. There are many critters prowling the streets in our community. To avoid trouble, please do not place your trash out at the curb until the morning of service.
- 2. Garage Doors must be kept closed except for egress and ingress. Local critters love to nest in garages. Avoid and unwelcome visit by snakes and scorpions.
- 3. Residents are prohibited from parking on the street. Guests may park on the street for short periods of time but not overnight. Overnight parking for guest vehicles is available throughout the community. There are ample guest parking spaces available throughout the community. Vehicles owned by residents must be parked within a closed garage. Parking on the driveway is prohibited.
- 4. Pool keys are available from the managing agent for a \$5.00 non-refundable fee. Mailbox keys must be obtained from the owner of the resident. Residents are responsible for replacing mailbox keys and, when necessary, the locks.
- 5. The Association maintains front yard landscaping and front yard irrigation. Please call the association manager at 742-5674 if you discover a water leak in the front yard.
- 6. If you plan to be away for a period of time please arrange to have your newspapers removed by a neighbor.
- 7. Front light bulbs are replaced by the Association. If you notice your light needs to be replaced please call the association manager at 742-5674.
- 8. Dogs must be kept on a leash at all times and residents are responsible for removing and properly disposing of all feces immediately.